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SHORE TOWN NOTES (FROM NEWJERSEYSHORE.COM) 
Atlantic Highlands, New Jersey Brief History: 
Originally part of Middletown Township and known as Portland Pointe, the town of Atlantic Highlands lured many investors to the area in the late 1800’s due to the waterfront location and lovely climate. Members of the early Methodist Church formed the Atlantic Highlands Association, and the 11-mile community plan was laid out.  Many hotels and beach cottages were built in Atlantic Highlands through the early 1900’s. The building boom included a large pier that served as a launching and disembarking point for steamships from New York City. All through the 1940’s, the steamers “Sandy Hook” and the “Monmouth” brought vacationers and business to the shores of Atlantic Highlands and Sandy Hook. To this day, vacationers and commuters can enjoy a ferry ride across Raritan Bay to get to work in Manhattan or to Atlantic Highlands for a day at the beach. 
The 1940’s also saw the creation of a municipal harbor, built using State & Federal funds. The harbor is the largest on the East Coast, storing more than 700 craft. Today, there are at least ten fast boats a day bound for New York City. These boats offer a quick 25-minute run, and offer snacks and a cash bar onboard. Ferry service to Shea Stadium and Yankee Stadium is offered for every home game of the New York Mets and Yankees. Atlantic Highlands is a New Jersey shore town that boasts a colorful history, as well as a perfect blend of beach relaxation and lively nightlife. A visitor can enjoy accommodations in an 1800’s Victorian B&B, local seafood so fresh it practically jumps out of the ocean, and many beach bars to unwind and listen to some great music preformed by local Jersey Shore bands.   The town overlooks where the Atlantic Ocean and Raritan Bay meet at Sandy Hook, and its hills mark the highest point on the eastern seaboard of the U.S.[16] south of Maine. For thousands of years, the original inhabitants were the Lenape, who lived in and along the cliffs and creeks of Atlantic Highlands. The Lenape traded with the Europeans and sold a group of English settlers an area that covered the entire peninsula that was named Portland Poynt. and was laid out with 10 lots in 1667, making them the first European residents of present day Atlantic Highlands.[17]
Colonists convened the first Assembly of New Jersey in 1667 in what is now Atlantic Highlands.[18] During Revolutionary War years, loyalists to the English crown and patriots of the new America clashed in repeated raids and counterattacks across these lands. And here passed retreating English troops after their 1778 defeat by Washington at the Battle of Monmouth. During the late 1800s, a handful of farms met an onrush of resort developers, church groups and town builders. They created the Victorian core of the town, attracting thousands of visitors and year-round residents. In 1879, a surveyor was engaged to lay roads and lots for a permanent community. The Atlantic Highlands Association was formed by prominent members of the Methodist Church. This organization developed the community of Atlantic Highlands.
Individuals and groups came from New York City and the surrounding vicinity to camp along the water in tent colonies. An outdoor amphitheater was created with a large seating capacity and outstanding acoustics. An indoor auditorium was built, which was utilized for entertaining visitors at the camp meetings. In 1887, Atlantic Highlands was incorporated as a borough, containing 1.2 square miles (3.1 km2) of land bordering on the Raritan Bay. Major construction occurred from the 1880s through 1900. It included hotels, cottages, rooming houses, and private homes. A pier was built extending well into the bay to accommodate steamboats from New York City. The next twenty years saw rapid development within the community. A water and sewer system was constructed, cottages were erected, and the road system was completed. During this period of development a fire department was organized. A number of churches saw their beginning in the 1880s: the Central Baptist, First Presbyterian, Saint Agnes Roman Catholic, First Methodist, and Saint Paul Baptist Church. 
Atlantic Highlands became a haven for bootleggers during Prohibition.[16]   Steamer service was the most important transport during the formation of the borough, and continued through the 1940s. In the 1890s, rail service came to Atlantic Highlands. This opened up Highlands and points south to vacationers. The 1920s saw 26 passenger trains daily passing through the Borough. The Central Railroad of New Jersey built a major pier at the end of First Avenue. Several trains at a time could continue to the end of the pier to offload steamboat passengers. From the 1910s through the 1940s, the steamers "Sandy Hook" and the "Monmouth" navigated the waters bringing businessmen and vacationers to Atlantic Highlands. 

Sandy Hook   The seven-mile stretch of spectacular ocean and bay beaches are excellent for surf casting, swimming, and relaxing on the sand. Nature lovers will revel in the 300 – plus species of migratory birds, as well as the pristine holly forest. Be Warned! Parking lots fill up early on weekends in the summer, causing the gates to close.  Sandy Hook / Highlands History: Originally discovered by the famous Sea Captain Henry Hudson in the early 1600’s, Sandy Hook remains a beautiful, 1,665-acre barrier peninsula within view of the Manhattan skyline.  It is recommended that those who would like to spend some time in Sandy Hook stay in Highlands, which is located on the hill across the bay. Highlands is the highest point on the entire eastern seaboard, and during the height of Prohibition became a bootleggers paradise. A sleepy seaside town, Highlands lost many vacationers to glitzier towns such as Atlantic City during the second half of the 20th Century.  Highlands boasts an abundance of seafood restaurants, nightlife and outdoor activities. The main historic site in Highlands is the Twin Lighthouses, commissioned by the Federal Government in 1828 to aid the ships navigating the harbor. Twin Lights was the first twin lighthouse ever built, the first to use kerosene and the first to use electricity. Visitors may tour the maritime museum, as well as enjoy a spectacular view of the ocean, the bay, Sandy Hook and New York. The Sandy Hook / Highlands area remain a favorite Jersey Shore getaway for Manhattanites due to the convenience of a forty-minute ferry ride from the Wall Street area. Come to Sandy Hook to spend the day enjoying the ocean and bask
Long Branch NJ The town of Long Branch NJ, is one of the largest cities on the Jersey Shore. From the period of the 1860’s through the First World War, it was also the most glamorous.Long Branch’s early years as a resort town was a virtual “Who’s Who” of society, including such names as Astor, Fisk, & Drexel – and even more notorious names such as Diamond Jim Brady and Lily Langtree. First Lady Mary Lincoln visited in 1861, but it was in 1869 that Long Branch NJ had it’s first presidential visit by President Grant. The President continued to visit every summer that he was president, and continued for many years after that. In 1870, a racetrack opened, (which is still thriving today) and soon after, casinos. Long Branch NJ was in its heyday, such was its reputation that seven other presidents followed suit in visiting here. Chester A. Arthur, Rutherford Hayes, Benjamin Harrison, William McKinley, Woodrow Wilson and James Garfield were frequent summer visitors. After an attempt was made on James Garfield’s life, he was brought to Long Branch NJ in hopes of a recovery aided by the sea air. Indeed, a railroad spur from the main line to his house was built to make him more comfortable in his travels. The 1920’s witnessed the beginning of Long Branch’s decline as a fashionable summer destination. Gambling laws stopped many of the rich and famous from visiting, and wicked storms eroded Long Branch’s famed beachfront. By the latter part of the 1960’s, organized crime settled in Long Branch NJ, further tarnishing it’s image. Buildings became run down, houses became shabby, and many locals had to depend on welfare. Sadly, the only remaining structure of Long Branch’s former elegance is the St. James Episcopal Church. Built in 1879, it is where all seven presidents worshipped. It has since been renamed Church of the Presidents and is located at 1260 Ocean Avenue. 
Sea Bright While Sea Bright's formal history starts in 1869, there was, in the early 1840's, a small cluster of wooden shacks nestled among the tall grass-topped sand dunes of the barrier beach.This was the village of Nauvoo.Meaning literally "beautiful of pleasant place". Sea Bright is known for its private beach clubs and beautiful restaurants.They have seven beach clubs.It also has a day-care center for dogs.If you want to shed off some pounds and get into shape, they also have brand new fitness club.For all you men who like to look good, there is the North shore men's clothing shop. Stress getting you down? Sea Bright also has the Brahma Yoga Spa. A beautiful place for reflection and concentration.Sea Bright is a great place to have fun and enjoy life.
Deal The town of Deal NJ comprises just 1.2 square miles. The English first settled the area in 1664. In 1670, a carpenter by the name of Thomas Whyte purchased a large amount of land along the coastal section of what was Shrewsbury Township. He named this area Deal NJ after his homeland of Deale, Kent County, England.  Until the late 1800’s, Deal NJ was mainly a farming & fishing area. By the early 1900’s, much of the land of Deal NJ had been purchased by developers and laid out for residential purposes. They left very little space for commercial use. Even today, the charm of Deal NJ lies in the large amount of beautiful, well-kept mansions as opposed to a thriving commercial downtown district. Visitors to the Deal NJ region can enjoy pristine beaches, lovely architecture, as well as great restaurants and lodging in nearby Ocean Grove, Long Branch & Deal NJ.
Asbury Park    Back in 1869, the land of Asbury Park was only beachfront and forest. A developer by the name of James A. Bradley changed the future of Asbury Park when he purchased the land while vacationing in nearby Ocean Grove. Recognizing the potential of the land, on January 24, 1871, Bradley acquired 500 acres for approximately $90,000.00. He named the town Asbury Park after the founder of Methodism in America: Francis Asbury. Bradley made plans for a wooden walkway for strolling along the shore. He offered only expansive residential lots for building, resulting in large Victorian “summer” homes. Since Bradley had traveled throughout Europe, his architectural vision for Asbury Park gave the town an old world feeling that was unique and pleasing to the eye.  The first hotel in Asbury Park, the Lake View, was opened in 1873. A year later, in 1874, Asbury Park’s first post office opened. Bradley was the town’s first postmaster. By 1877 there were several hotels to accommodate the large groups of vacationers flooding the area. The largest was the Coleman House, occupying an entire city block.  To solve the problem of vacationers getting to various points in town, in 1885 a trolley system was installed. What made this trolley special was that it was the second electric system in the United States – trolleys were previously horse drawn.  By 1890, the city of Asbury Park had enough hotels to accommodate several thousand guests. The town was known throughout the country as a beautiful seaside resort destination. Bradley sold the boardwalk in 1903 to the city, and rapid development followed. Soon after, grand structures such as the Casino, Esplanade & 7th Avenue Pavilion rose to prominence. The Cookman Avenue shopping area boomed, attracting both locals and vacationers alike.  The major Nor’easter of 1923 devastated many of Asbury’s beloved structures. To rejuvenate the town, several new structures were built, including the massive Berkeley Carteret Hotel, a new Casino and Convention Hall. The same firm who completed New York City’s jewel – Grand Central Station, designed both the casino and Convention Hall.  By the 1930’s, Asbury Park was the hottest town on the Jersey Shore. There were amusements on the boardwalk and big bands playing the various pavilions. Bud Abbott & Lou Costello performed at Convention Hall, as well as other top acts of the day.  The big lifestyle changes of the post war years started a slow and steady decline in Asbury Park. The shopping district of Cookman Avenue was affected by strip malls sprouting up in the surrounding suburbs. As people prospered, air travel and vacations far from home became the norm. By the 1970’s, Asbury Park was in serious need of urban renewal. The town that had inspired many songs of the legendary Bruce Springsteen, who often played the seaside bar scene, was rapidly turning to a no-mans land of poverty and urban blight. Many plans for renewal throughout the years ended due to lack of funds and political corruption. 
  Ocean Grove Incorporated in 1869 by a group of spiritual lay leaders and is a National Historical District. Since its incorporation, the one-square-mile town has been host to thousands of summer visitors, including U.S. Presidents. The most impressive structure in Ocean Grove, and the center of activity since 1894, is The Great Auditorium. Built in 1875, the auditorium was originally covered with tree boughs. It provided shade but not shelter from rain for the congregation. A permanent roof was added in 1876. At this time the Auditorium could seat 3,000 worshipers. The congregation continued to grow over the years, resulting in the construction of a new building to seat 10,000 in 1893. The Great Auditorium continues to be used for Sunday services during the summer. It also serves as a showcase for popular preachers and evangelists such as Billy Graham, Gypsy Smith and Norman Vincent Peale. In the early days of Ocean Grove tents were the predominant shelter for visitors. Today, 114 tent structures can be seen nestled around The Great Auditorium. Some of the tent owners are descendents of early Ocean Grove families, passing the tradition from generation to generation. Until 1980, the town gates were closed and chained from midnight Saturday until midnight Sunday. No vehicles of any kind were permitted on the Sabbath. The same year, the courts ruled that there was a conflict between church & state and the gates must remain open. Come to Ocean Grove this year and enjoy an elegant resort town where historic architecture and pristine beaches await you. Ocean Grove’s tree lined streets boast the largest assemblage of authentic Victorian architecture in the nation. In 1977, Ocean Grove was entered into the National Register of Historic Places
 Bradley Beach  Legend has it that back in 1679 in Bradley Beach, NJ, Captain William Kidd anchored his vessel off what is now known as Sylvan Lake. He stayed in Bradley Beach, burying his treasure between two large trees on today's Brinley Avenue. Captain Kidd never reclaimed his fortune - perhaps it drifted back to sea or maybe he never buried it at all. One hundred and ninety-two years later, two gentlemen by the names of William B. Bradner and James A. Bradley purchased 54 acres of land north of Avon. They named this area "Ocean Park". However, it was suggested that they change the name in order not to be confused with nearby Oceanport. Since William Bradner did not want to suggest his own name, the area was named Bradley Beach, after James A. Bradley. This New Jersey Shore town was incorporated in March of 1893, making it one of Monmouth County's youngest municipalities. By the 1920's, Bradley Beach was a very popular resort for tourists from New York and Philadelphia. The beachfront boasted several hundred changing rooms as well as two swimming pools and a number of stores.  Bradley Beach has maintained its reputation as a great Jersey Shore resort town. Today, the year-round population is 5,000 - but it soars to 30,000 during the summer months. 
Avon By The Sea   Back in 1878, many wealthy visitors from New York and Philadelphia vacationed at the Jersey Shore in such towns as Asbury Park, Long Branch & Ocean Grove. At this time, present day Avon-by-the-Sea was known locally as New Branch or the Swanton Tract, depending on whom you talked to. One of the many wealthy visitors to frequent the shore was a tobacco manufacturer from Philadelphia named Edward Batchelor. One day while en route to a fishing hole, he happened upon New Branch and was very impressed with the land. Coincidentally, the land was for sale, so Mr. Batchelor purchased it the next day for $45,000.00. In 1897 Mr. Batchelor hired a few engineers to look after the land. It is during this time that the town started to take shape. Mr. Batchelor had wanted to use the land as the new headquarters of his tobacco company, but instead took the advice of his engineers and developed the land for residential use. With Mr. Batchelor's guidance and investments over the next several years, the town started to grow as a resort community. Land for residential purposes was sold for astronomical amounts. The town was incorporated as "Avon-by-the-Sea" on March 23, 1900. Soon after, a boardwalk was laid and a fire department was organized. However, where the name "Avon" came from remains somewhat of a mystery. It is suggested by some that the name "Avon" came from the Avon Inn, constructed in 1883. Nowadays, Avon By The Sea still offers much to vacationers or day visitors. Just 60 miles from New York and Philadelphia, it is a great place to swim & relax in the summer sun. Plenty of fine restaurants, shops, Victorian homes and a non-commercial boardwalk make Avon one of New Jersey's most relaxing respites.
Belmar NJ    It was probably Englishman Henry Hudson who was the first to anchor in Monmouth County. The logbook of his ship, the “Half Moon”, made note of arriving at a hilly inlet. Since the Shark River Inlet is the only inlet of the area, certainly this is where Mr. Hudson landed. When Henry Hudson returned home, he claimed this territory for the Dutch; hence, New Jersey was under Dutch control before the English took over the land. It was not until 1664 that King Charles II of England was able to give the entire territory, what is now the entire State of New Jersey, to Lord Berkely and Sir George Carteret. Over 200 years later, a group of twenty-five investors decided to build a summer community in what is present day Belmar. They chose this location for the great fishing and cool sea breezes. The town was named “Ocean Beach” in 1872. The name was changed in 1889 to Belmar, French for “Beautiful Sea”  Belmar’s first hotel, The Ocean Beach House, was built in 1873. By 1890, more than 17 hotels were in operation catering to hundreds of summer visitors. The most fashionable hotel was The Columbia. The largest, taking up an entire block, was The Atlantic. This hotel catered to the literary class. Sadly, it burned to the ground in 1972. In 1893 the first ice cream parlor was opened in Belmar. By 1900, there were shooting galleries, rental boats and bait for sale around town.  The Fifth Avenue Pavilion opened in 1894, followed by the construction of hundreds of bathhouses. By the early 1900’s, Belmar was established as a premier resort destination of the Northeast. Since the early 1900’s, Belmar has kept its reputation as a resort town for all seasons. Whether you are seeking a relaxing vacation on the beach or a vacation full of activities and nightlife, you can find it at Belmar.
Long Branch NJ          The town of Long Branch, is one of the largest cities on the Jersey Shore. From the period of the 1860’s through the First World War, it was also the most glamorous.  Long Branch’s early years as a resort town was a virtual “Who’s Who” of society, including such names as Astor, Fisk, & Drexel – and even more notorious names such as Diamond Jim Brady and Lily Langtree. First Lady Mary Lincoln visited in 1861, but it was in 1869 that Long Branch had it’s first presidential visit by President Grant. The President continued to visit every summer that he was president, and continued for many years after that. In 1870, a racetrack opened, (which is still thriving today) and soon after, casinos. Long Branch was in its heyday, such was its reputation that seven other presidents followed suit in visiting here. Chester A. Arthur, Rutherford Hayes, Benjamin Harrison, William McKinley, Woodrow Wilson and James Garfield were frequent summer visitors. After an attempt was made on James Garfield’s life, he was brought to Long Branch in hopes of a recovery aided by the sea air. Indeed, a railroad spur from the main line to his house was built to make him more comfortable in his travels.  The 1920’s witnessed the beginning of Long Branch’s decline as a fashionable summer destination. Gambling laws stopped many of the rich and famous from visiting, and wicked storms eroded Long Branch’s famed beachfront. By the latter part of the 1960’s, organized crime settled in Long Branch, further tarnishing it’s image. Buildings became run down, houses became shabby, and many locals had to depend on welfare. Sadly, the only remaining structure of Long Branch’s former elegance is the St. James Episcopal Church. Built in 1879, it is where all seven presidents worshipped. It has since been renamed Church of the Presidents and is located at 1260 Ocean Avenue.  Fortunately, Long Branch NJ is now enjoying a rebirth. Visitors to Long Branch will enjoy the beach, the new boardwalk, as well as Seven Presidents Oceanfront Park, a 33-acre county park with facilities for swimming, boating and picnicking. Some of the summer bungalows have been replaced with high-rise condos. There is also a large selection of outstanding restaurants as well as a lively nightlife for the young and hip – or the young at heart! 
This is the NJ park we go thru after Newark; Frederick Law Olmstead (Central Park) was involved in it.
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